Questions & Answers
Characterizing Air Quality Impact from Renewable Natural Gas and Improving Natural Gas System Climate Resilience
GFO-19-501
General Questions
Q.1 	Is there possible consideration for extending the proposal submission date?
A. 1. 	This has been considered and can be found in the addendum to the Solicitation Manual, Page 10. Section G: Key Activities Schedule.
Dates adjusted:
	ACTIVITY
	DATE
	TIME[footnoteRef:1]  [1:  Pacific Standard Time or Pacific Daylight Time, whichever is being observed.] 


	Solicitation Release
	11/26/2019
	

	Pre-Application Workshop
	12/09/2019
	11:00 a.m.

	Deadline for Written Questions[footnoteRef:2] [2:  This deadline does not apply to non-technical questions (e.g., questions concerning application format requirements or attachment instructions) or to questions that address an ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission, or other error in the solicitation.  Such questions may be submitted to the Commission Agreement Officer listed in Section H at any time prior to the application deadline.  Please see Section H for additional information.] 

	12/11/2019
	5:00 p.m.

	Anticipated Distribution of Questions and Answers 
	week of 12/23/2019
	

	Deadline to Submit Applications
	01/08/2020 02/10/2020
	5:00 p.m.

	Anticipated Notice of Proposed Award Posting Date
	01/27/2020 02/28/2020
	

	Anticipated Energy Commission Business Meeting Date
	04/08/2020 05/13/2020
	

	Anticipated Agreement Start Date
	05/01/2020 06/01/2020
	

	Anticipated Agreement End Date 
	01/02/2024
	



	[bookmark: _Toc23760420]Number
	Question/Answer

	Q.2
	The Past Agreements section of Attachment 1 – Application Form, requests “ANY active or past (within the last ten years) agreements with the Energy Commission, any other California state agency, California utilities, and/or the U.S. Department of Energy.”  Previous GFO’s have included language stating, “if the number of agreements for the applicant or subcontractor exceeds ten, list at least ten of the applicant or subcontractor’s most recent agreements, in order of date and relevance to the proposed project.”  Given that an entity/team could have hundreds of active or past Government funded projects within this 10-year timeframe, will the CEC limit the number of agreements which must be listed in The Past Agreements section of Attachment 1 – Application Form and allow for sorting by relevance?

	A.2
	This has been revised in Attachment 1 Application Form, Page 3: under Past Agreements.
The added text is underlined and bolded below:
(Complete the table below if the applicant and/or its subcontractors have any active or past (within the last ten years) agreements with the Energy Commission, any other California state agency, California utilities, and/or the U.S. Department of Energy.  If the number of agreements for the applicant or subcontractor exceeds ten, list at least ten of the applicant or subcontractor’s most recent agreements, in order of date and relevance to the proposed project.)


	Q.3
	Our core group is in California but we would like to include one set of colleagues from outside the state as a sub-contractor (less than 20% of requested budget); is this permissible?

	A.3
	Please see Attachment 12, the California-Based Entity (CBE) Form, for the requirements that must be met in order to receive CBE preference points. 
Additionally, please refer to the Solicitation Manual - Section IV.F under “7.CEC Funds Spent in California”- for how projects that spend PIER natural gas funds in (or outside of) California will receive points. Please refer to the Solicitation Manual - Section IV.F under “9. California Base Entities (CBE) Preference Points”- for the percentage of possible points that are possible with a percentage of the PIER Natural Gas Funds Allocated to CBEs.

	Q.4
	Can an increment of funds be used to purchase hardware?  (in this case, storage for the datasets that would be generated.) This would not exceed 10% of the requested budget.

	A.4
	Applicants are to include justifications as to why the proposed allocations of funds are expected to be needed to meet the specifically proposed objectives.

	Q.5
	The end of project timeline was stated to be 2024.  But is there a need to deliver historical data to serve California’s 5th Climate Change Assessment?  

	A.5
	The research supported by GFO-19-501 is not anticipated to align with the expected timeline of an anticipated Fifth Climate Change Assessment. However, it is anticipated that opportunities to coordinate with the Assessment’s technical, regional, and synthesis reports may present over the course of research supported by GFO-19-501.

	Q.6
	Aside from matching commitment letter(s), are letters of support from Californian Agencies welcomed?

	A.6
	Support letters from a project stakeholder may include relevant industry and organizations that will benefit from or be involved in the project.
On page 21 of the Solicitation Manual (Section III.D.11), it is stated that “A support letter details an entity or individual’s support for the project.” Additionally on page 22, it is stated that:
2. Support Letters
All applicants must include at least one support letter from a project stakeholder (i.e., an entity or individual that will benefit from or be involved in the project) that: (1) describes the stakeholder’s interest or involvement in the project; (2) indicates the extent to which the project has the support of the relevant industry and/or organizations; and (3) describes any support it intends (but does not necessarily commit) to provide for the project, such as funding or the provision of a test site.”

	Q.7
	What overhead rate is allowed from University of California proposals? If outside-state subcontractor is allowed, are there constraints on overhead that they are allowed to charge?   (normally their OH is 65%)

	A.7
	Per existing agreement between the University of California (UC) and the California Energy Commission, the indirect overhead rate is capped at 25% for all UC recipients. However, a non-UC entity that is a subcontractor to a UC (regardless of location) is not held to the 25% cap. For example:
· Example A: Prime is a UC, with another UC as a Sub. Both entities have indirect rate caps at 25%.
· Example B: Prime is a UC with a Sub that is non-UC. The Prime has the 25% cap, and the Sub does not.
Example C: Prime is a non-UC with a sub that is a UC. The Prime does not have a cap, while the Sub has the 25% cap.

	Q.8
	Is computing resources a suitable "match"?

	A.8
	It is not completely clear what is meant by this question. However, applicants are referred to page 7 of the Solicitation Manual, Section I.F.2 concerning definitions of “match funding” categories.




Group 1:	Characterizing Air Quality Impacts of RNG Project Development
	Number
	Question/Answer

	Q.9
	The proposal lists three types of candidate sites: wastewater treatment plants, landfills, and dairy farms. The guidance is unclear on whether measurements must be taken at all three types of sites. Would a proposal taking measurements at just one or two types of sites be considered “unresponsive”?

	A.9
	A proposal for taking measurements at one or two types of sites would not be considered “unresponsive.” The proposal language states that the goal of this research is to measure GHGs at site(s) that generate renewable natural gas (RNG). Wastewater treatment plants, landfills, and dairies are listed in the proposal as examples of sites that are significant sources of methane.  

	Q.10
	For a facility to be considered a suitable site, must RNG production occur on-site or can biogas be collected from the site and then transported to a separate RNG processing facility? For example, would a site that collects biogas from dairy digesters and transports the biogas to a centralized facility for clean-up and pipeline injection be acceptable?

	A.10
	“The goal of this research is to measure greenhouse gas emissions, mostly methane, as well as other air pollutant emissions at site(s) that generate renewable natural gas (RNG).” (page 14, Section II.B.1.a of the Solicitation Manual). It is additionally stated that; “The research will involve field measurements of methane as well as other air pollutant emissions at site(s) before and after energy projects are implemented, or at sites where energy projects could be implemented and have been implemented, to generate biomethane. The target emissions include methane, nitrous oxide, volatile organic compounds (VOCs), and other criteria pollutants. The field measurements should be made multiple times to enable a defensible estimate of annual emissions before and after project implementation.” In describing suitable sites, applicants should provide rationale as to how those sites help meet the goal of the research and how measurements of the stated target emissions can be made at those sites to enable a defensible estimate of annual emissions before and after project implementation. 

	Q.11
	Is it required to make measurements across the entire facility? Or can the study focus instead on only the processes/areas that change with implementation of the RNG project? For instance, if the study facility is a dairy, do emissions across the entire dairy need to be quantified, or can measurements instead be focused solely on the manure management areas and lagoons that are affected by the bioenergy project?

	A.11
	As stated in the Solicitation Manual (p.14, Section II.B.1.a) “The proposed research will help establish a pre-project emission baseline for RNG sites and illuminate the air quality and climate pollutant impacts of RNG project development.” Applicants should explain how proposed measurements help contribute to establishment of the baseline and illuminate the air quality and climate pollutant impacts of RNG project development. In case where more limited measurement approaches are needed, please explain the rationale.

	Q.12
	Must measurements be made at sites that do not already have detailed measurements of historical baseline emissions? Can historical data be used for before-and-after emissions comparisons?

	A.12
	It is not required that measurements be made at sites that do not already have detailed measurements. Historical data could be used, provided that applicants explain how this data will be used to establish a “pre-project emission baseline for RNG sites and illuminates the air quality and climate pollutant impact of RNG project development.” (p. 14 of the Solicitation Manual, Section II.B.1.a)

	Q.13
	The guidance was unclear on the scope of the emissions inventory. Are you asking for on-site only emission rates before and after RNG implementation? Or are you asking for a more complete inventory, as in an end-to-end life cycle assessment that measures and compares current use of methane on-site versus the final end use of produced RNG (i.e., diesel offsets)?

	A.13
	The scope of the emissions inventory is on-site emissions before and after RNG implementation only. End-to-end life cycle assessment is beyond what is requested in the Solicitation Manual. See page 14 of the revised Solicitation Manual, Section II.B.1.a. “The research will involve field measurements of methane as well as other air pollutant emissions at site(s) before and after energy projects are implemented, or at sites where energy projects could be implemented and have been implemented, to generate biomethane.” 

	Q.14
	The guidance was unclear on the intended applications of the resulting dataset. Can you give examples of how the data may be used in the future?

	A.14
	[bookmark: _GoBack]The resulting dataset may be used to inform the state’s GHG emissions inventory, as well as inform infrastructure planning decisions that would help the state meet policy goals related to renewable energy and GHGs.

	Q.15
	What does it mean to “begin implementation”?  To the extent technically feasible, can an existing site be turned “on” and “off” and still be responsive? Or will only new sites breaking ground be considered relevant?

	A.15
	As stated on page 14 of the revised Solicitation Manual, Section II.B.1.a. “The research will involve field measurements of methane as well as other air pollutant emissions at site(s) before and after energy projects are implemented, or at sites where energy projects could be implemented and have been implemented, to generate biomethane.” In line with this, sites that will be considered sufficient for the purposes of characterizing emissions “before” an RNG project has begun to be implemented are either; (A) sites where measurements are made prior to breaking ground (“site(s) before and after energy projects are implemented”), or (B) sites where an RNG project does not exist, but where one could be implemented (“sites where energy projects could be implemented”).

	Q.16
	Are specific technologies favored, e.g., dairy digester, landfill gas recovery, anaerobic composting, wastewater treatment?

	A.16
	No, no specific technologies are favored.

	Q.17
	Is the priority to characterize a single site exhaustively, or would multiple sites/technologies be given consideration?

	A.17
	The priority is to accomplish the goals of the solicitation. Single sites, multiple sites, and multiple technologies will be given consideration, and applicants are encouraged to provide rationale for their choice of sites and technologies.

	Q.18
	Will the CEC be providing any assistance with partnerships to relevant sites/facilities, e.g., “meet and greet” and/or websites for interested parties to connect?

	A.18
	Please see our Empower Innovation website, https://www.empowerinnovation.net/ 

	Q.19
	Do we need to identify project sites in the proposal for Air Quality portion? How detailed?

	A.19
	Yes, applicants should identify (a) prospective project site(s) and provide evidence that their proposed methodology—including site selection and recruitment—will lead to a successful project. 

	Q.20
	What are the "other" criteria pollutants that need to be measured besides VOC?

	A.20
	Other criteria are not specified at this time; however, we welcome suggestions from applicants.

	Q.21
	Do we need to identify a specific project site, not a project site type? This was not clear in the response.

	A.21
	Yes, applicants should identify (a) prospective project site(s) and provide evidence that their proposed methodology—including site selection and recruitment—will lead to a successful project.

	Q.22
	VOCs are notoriously difficult to measure and speciate, making it difficult to compare results between studies that use different methods. Does CEC intend to specify what method should be used for measuring VOCs? We note that previously CARB has required use of South Coast AQMD method 25.3 for measuring dairy VOCs.

	A.22
	Applicants are encouraged to provide rationale for their choice of measurement approach(es), including instruments and methods.

	Q.23
	Are specific compounds and methods preferred for the non-methane measurements, including specific VOCs?

	A.24
	Applicants are encouraged to provide rationale for their choice of measurement compound(s) and method(s).

	Q.25
	Is there a preference for sites that are designed to use the biomethane they produce on-site, as opposed to delivering this to pipeline infrastructure?

	A.25
	No, there is no preference with regard to sites using biomethane on-site vs. delivering it to the pipeline infrastructure. 

	Q.26
	You have $1,000,000 for Group 1, and a minimum would be $900,000. So, you’re only after either a wastewater project, a landfill project, or a dairy project. You’re not looking for all three, is that correct?

	A.26
	It is up to the recipient to use funds and complete their proposed project as thoroughly or extensively as they propose. This could include one or more of the above and/or another types of RNG site(s). Applicants may also commit match funding to the project.

	Q.27
	Are you looking at just the RNG project or the whole facility where that project is located? Because in the case of a Dairy, you’re going to have a very large operation where the RNG project has a very small footprint on that larger facility. That larger facility could include, depending on your definition, all the surrounding area of agricultural land that they use to grow crops. A lot of the equipment on a Dairy for example is related to the farming operations, not just the Dairy. In other words, if the RNG project has no impact on the rest of the dairy operation, then would a project that just focused on RNG aspect be sufficient? There are two sources of methane on a Dairy, the cows themselves and the manure handling practices. If those two are not separate on the facility, then it’s going to be difficult to measure accordingly.

	A.27
	As stated on page 14 of the revised Solicitation Manual, Section II.B.1.a “The proposed research is crucial to enable identification and characterization of climate and air quality impacts of RNG projects … The proposed research will help establish a pre-project emission baseline for RNG sites and illuminate the air quality and climate pollutant impacts of RNG project development.”  Given the complexity introduced by co-location of multiple emissions sources, the applicant should explain how they will deliver this objective based on their proposed methodology. 

	Q.28
	What does it mean to be “before implementation” in “emission baselines before implementation of the RNG projects are unknown”?  To the extent technically feasible, can an existing site be turned “on” and “off” and still be responsive (to the extent appropriate for the technology)? Or will only new sites breaking ground be considered relevant?

	A.28
	As stated on page 14 of the revised Solicitation Manual, Section II.B.1.a.: “The research will involve field measurements of methane as well as other air pollutant emissions at site(s) before and after energy projects are implemented, or at sites where energy projects could be implemented and have been implemented, to generate biomethane.” In line with this, sites that will be considered sufficient for the purposes of characterizing emissions “before” an RNG project has begun to be implemented are either; (A) sites where measurements are made prior to breaking ground (“site(s) before and after energy projects are implemented”), or (B) sites where an RNG project does not exist, but where one could be implemented (“sites where energy projects could be implemented”).

	Q.29
	Given that resources may only allow for a comprehensive project at limited sites, are specific technologies favored from the dairy digester, landfill gas recovery, wastewater treatment options discussed during the workshop?

	A.29
	No, no specific technologies are favored.

	Q.30
	Do we need to identify all project sites or could some be listed as “site to be determined”?

	A.30
	Yes, applicants should identify prospective project site(s) and provide evidence that their proposed methodology—including site selection and recruitment—will lead to a successful project.



Group 2: Characterization of Historical Climatic Conditions
	Number
	Question/Answer

	Q.31
	Is "hydrology" part of desired historical "climate"?   

	A.31
	As written on page 13 of the Solicitation Manual, Section II.B.1.b, “The research will provide the methodological foundation for recreating historical climate and hydrological data for California. The historical data set will enable identification and attribution of trends driven by climate change as a basis for illuminating how IOU infrastructure planning and operations would be affected by that change.” The research will also enable the development of a historical baseline to help natural gas IOUs consider the changing risk of compounding extreme weather events. Such events are, for example, the risk of flash floods due to extreme precipitation related to atmospheric rivers; or the risk of severe precipitation triggering landslides in an area burned in a wildfire.
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